FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Board of Trustees Public Meeting

October 11, 2004

CALL TO ORDER
Vice-Chair Jerry King called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. at Stevenson
Community Library.

PRESENT

Vice-Chair Jerry King presiding. Other board members: Jack Burkman, Elena Smith
and Karen Peterson. Staff attending included: Bruce Ziegman, Executive Director;
Patty Duitman, Operations Director; Sue Vanlaanen, Communications Director; Mary
Devlin, Community Libraries Director; and Becky Pettigrew, recording.

Others staff and citizens attending: Rick Smithrud, Mara Reynolds, Chris Hughey,
Jackie Spurlock, Mary Repar and Joseph Bacus.

AGENDA
Bruce requested that the topic of Modular Units be added to the agenda. The agenda
was approved as amended.

MINUTES
The minutes of the September 13, 2004 meeting were approved as emailed.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
King announced that Peterson would participate in the meeting via telephone.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Mary Repar said the FVRL Foundation Authors and Illustrators Dinner was a
wonderful event with many attendees, however she found the “paddle raising” part of
the event uncomfortable. She also expressed concern that she had not received
notification that this would take place as part of the event. She said it felt
uncomfortable because some people do not have a lot of money to give. Repar
wondered if the cost of the dinner, the silent auction and the sale of the author’s
books might raise enough money that the paddle raising would not be necessary in the
future. Also, Repar noted that Dean Sutherland overlooked Skamania and Klickitat
Counties as being part of the district when he spoke at the event. King thanked her
for her feedback and said that this is something that the FVRL Foundation’s Dinner
Committee could take into consideration as they plan their next event.

Ziegman responded to Repar’s comment about Dean Sutherland. He expressed
apologies for the oversight, noting that staff should have done a better job helping
Sutherland prepare. Responding to the paddle raising issue, Ziegman said that it’s not
uncommon for this type of activity to be conducted at major fundraisers. He added
that it was the most significant fundraising success at the event, but that the
Foundation Dinner Committee could take a different approach next time. Repar said



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, October 11, 2004 Page 2

that the people she talked to about the dinner did not plan to come again because they
felt uncomfortable with that portion of it.

Joseph Bacus said that people who give time or money to support an organization
should not be exposed to a situation in which they feel unappreciated. He did not feel
that the Dinner gave credit to those who have given significant amounts of time to the
library as Friends members and who don’t have the resources to make a major
monetary contribution. He said he didn’t plan to participate in any more of these
events and wouldn’t support it if the events are done this way again. He suggested
that in the future, people at the dinner make silent contributions through an envelope
that has membership levels printed in it. King invited Smithrud to respond to the
issues raised.

Smithrud said that the Dinner Committee would be meeting in the next few days and
would discuss the issues raised. He noted that a message was sent to all 250 people
who paid for tickets letting them know the paddle raising would occur. Many people
paid for an entire table and Smithrud said it sounds like those who paid for tables
didn’t communicate the information to the others at their table. Smithrud also noted
that it was optional for people to participate in the paddle raising.

Burkman acknowledged that were two separate issues: having prior knowledge that
the paddle raising would occur and concern that the paddle raising even occurred at
all. He said that if two people feel this way, there’s likely others. Reynolds said she
was a table captain and didn’t communicate it to her table. Repar suggested putting
the information on the invitation as well as in the letter, so that it’s communicated at
the beginning.

Jackie Spurlock said that the FVRL Foundation uses this as their major fundraiser.
The Friends of Battle Ground Community Library pay for a number of tables for their
members. She said everyone attending should have known that it’s a fundraiser.

7. BUSINESS

A. Expenditure Approval
MOTION: Elena Smith moved and Jack Burkman seconded approval of the accounts
payable, payroll and payroll payables as presented. The motion passed unanimously.

B. Three Creeks Library Capital Facility Area Expenditure Approval
MOTION: Elena Smith moved and Jack Burkman seconded approval of the Three
Creeks Library Capital Facility Area expenditures. The motion passed unanimously.

C. Modular Building and Container
Duitman explained that there is a significant shortage of staff workspace in
both the Vancouver building and the Cascade Park library.

At Vancouver, the storage and staging of the discovery kits used in
conjunction with the successful early childhood development initiative is



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, October 11, 2004 Page 3

proving to be a challenge. Also, with migration to a new automated system
coming up and the staff training that will be needed, a dedicated training room
with computer equipment is necessary. Duitman proposed that the district
lease a modular unit to be placed inside the old tennis court area. For a 28-
foot by 60-foot modular building, the one-time set-up cost would be
approximately $25,589, with an annual lease of approximately $14,863. The
district has a conditional use permit for the tennis court area and the City of
Vancouver has indicated that placing a modular unit on the site falls within
the permit’s restrictions. It was also noted that staff would not have
permanent workstations inside the modular unit.

In Cascade Park, a storage container is needed to house materials from
deliveries, which are received 6 days per week and are currently
overwhelming the staff workspace. A 10-foot by 20-foot metal storage unit
would help relieve the overcrowding. It has a one-time cost of $11,300
including setup, and there is no ongoing cost. Duitman proposed that the
money for these units come from the Planning and Development Fund held
within the Reserve Fund.

Burkman asked how long these units could be used? Duitman explained that
there is no time limit, as long as no staff are assigned to work permanently
inside the structures and we have an ADA ramp and nearby sanitation.
Ziegman added that the unit at Vancouver would be similar to the portables
used by school districts.

Smith asked for more information on the training lab. Duitman said that the
lab would have electricity and computers, but no one assigned to have a
permanent desk. Smith asked if this is cheaper than renting space
somewhere? Duitman said it currently costs about $80,000 per year to lease
7,000 square feet for the Annex, with significantly more maintenance costs.
Also, the move-in cost for the Annex was over $100,000. Smith asked if,
other than the training lab, the modular unit would just be storage space?
Duitman said that staff would also use the space to put kits together, but they
would still have their permanent workspace inside the library building.

Burkman said that he agrees there is a need for the units and that he’s in favor
of moving this agenda item to be included in the budget hearing. Smith said
she’s aware of the need, but concerned what taxpayers may think about the
units. She said she is willing to discuss it and will likely vote for it. Ziegman
said that it doesn’t solve any public space issues, just some of the staff issues.
King agreed that it should go on the agenda next month for more discussion
and action. Smith asked if several choices or alternatives could be offered to
the board. Ziegman said that staff is looking for other competitive bids. He
invited the board to email any other questions they think of to him.



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, October 11, 2004 Page 4

8. REPORTS

A. Community Libraries
Mary Devlin’s written report is attached. Devlin explained that the Battle
Ground School Board and Battle Ground City Council held a joint study
session on Sept. 27 to discuss a possible land swap. This would result in the
library being able to build a much larger facility next to its current site. About
60 community members attended the meeting in support of the library. Other
locations are being simultaneously pursued and Devlin said the Friends are
eager to get started on fundraising once a location is determined.

Many of our libraries are in the path of potential ash flow from a Mount St.
Helens eruption. Facilities Manger Dennis Sword has put together emergency
volcano eruption kits containing duct tape, masks, plastic and instructions for
what to do.

B. Communications
Vanlaanen noted that over 100 responses had been received in the last few
days from the Strategic Planning online response form on the library’s Web
site. A number of citizens have responded with emails as well. A public
forum on strategic planning will be held Oct. 12 and is open to everyone.
FVTV will tape the forum and broadcast it multiple times over the next
month. Other details are included in her written report, attached.

Ziegman said staff would give the board a report on Strategic Planning at the
November board meeting, with more detail following the Nov. 17 Strategic
Planning Committee meeting.

Smith congratulated library staff that designed the teen Web site, which was
selected “site of the month” in the October issue of VOYA, a journal for
young adult librarians.

C. District Resources
Doreen Turpen’s written report is attached.

D. Operations
During September, three vendors presented demonstrations of their Integrated

Library Systems to staff. Duitman explained that the two finalists would do
additional demonstrations.

The library’s accounting system moved from an accrual to a cash basis in
2003, and Duitman said this impacts how information is presented in the
Financials the board received. Expenses paid in 2004 are in the expense side,
but the revenue side does not reflect money that was moved in order to pay for
it. This will be resolved later this year when a budget amendment is done.

Burkman asked when the reports would begin including a column showing
percentage expended. Duitman said that this would be added to the reports



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, October 11, 2004 Page 5

soon. She had anticipated that it would be added sooner, however the auditor
requested some changes in how information is reported which has impacted
their schedule.

E. FVRL Foundation
Smithrud’s written report is attached. He noted that Merle Koplan also
provided the board with a written report (Koplan is the library board’s liaison
to the Foundation). Smithrud announced that a Fabulous Furniture Raffle
would be conducted again this year, with a $1,000 gift certificate to Koplan’s
Home Furnishings as the prize.

King said the board appreciates the Foundation’s help and support.

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Ziegman said that he heard many positive comments from community members who
attended the Foundation Dinner and that it was quite a success. He noted that this is
the first time a paddle raising has been tried in the dinner’s four years, and it’s
certainly more aggressive than what some might be used to; however those who
regularly attend fundraisers are used to this kind of activity. Ziegman also stated that
the Foundation would not have received nearly as many contributions from envelopes
on the table.

Ziegman moderated a debate for 17" Legislative District Representative candidates
Deb Wallace and Roy Rhine. He also shared an update about the Rotary book
donation program. Vancouver Rotary gives a book to the library on behalf of each of
its weekly speakers. The book is announced at the end of the Rotary meeting and
then goes into the library collection. Ziegman said that the speakers have all felt very
honored by the gift and that it’s good public relations for the library. The idea for the
program came from Keith Koplan.

Acknowledgment was given to the staff involved in the selection of a new Integrated
Library System. As soon as a system is selected, Ziegman said that a demonstration
would be given at a board meeting.

Ziegman also commented on the recent progress toward a larger library in Battle
Ground. King said the board is very interested and asked Ziegman to consider when
the board should be involved. Ziegman said that board action would be needed for
land acquisition and the sale of the First & Clark building.

FVTYV is the public access television channel reactivated by the City of Vancouver
and County County. Formerly, the library district appointed two members to their 7-
member board (the board is now self-appointing). Ziegman noted that FVTV is now
able to film events such as the library’s public forum.

Ziegman also reminded the board that he would be retesting the library’s Internet
filter, as it has been six months since it was activated.



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, October 11, 2004 Page 6

10.

11.

12.

13.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Jackie Spurlock thanked Ziegman, Devlin and the library board for their support of
the Battle Ground library effort. She said she is excited that it’s finally starting to
move forward again. She also mentioned the frequent use of the First & Clark
building for library-related programs. When the site is sold, alternate solutions will
be needed until a larger library is built. Spurlock also invited the board to get a
behind-the-scenes tour of the Battle Ground Library on November 8 before the board
meeting.

Mara Reynolds expressed her thanks for the retirement event held in her honor earlier
that afternoon, and said she feels fortunate to have worked for FVRL for the past 24
years. She noted that the Stevenson library couldn’t do as much without being part of
the regional system. King, Burkman and Smith expressed appreciation to Reynolds
for her many years of good work. Smith added that FVRL hires the best people and
that makes a huge difference; she said the library is great because of its employees.

BOARD COMMENTS
None.

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
The next regular meeting will be on Monday, November 8§ at the First & Clark
Building in Battle Ground. The public meeting will begin at 7:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.

These minutes were approved at the December 13, 2004 board meeting.



FVRL Board Report
Sue Vanlaanen, Communications Director
October 11, 2004

Strategic Planning -- Update

Input...
X

We're getting INPUT...

Oct. 12 public forumFort Vancouver Television will recomhd broadcast this open meeting,
which will be held in Library Hall in Vancouvend moderated by consultant Jeanne Goodrich.
We've advertised this event via flyers and neapers across the district, and have promoted it
on the library's home page.

Online response fornvore than 100 completed forms haween received so far, many with
additional comments.

Community Input MeetingsNe've held these casual focus-group-type meetings in East
Vancouver (for our branches in Washougal, Van Mall and Cascade Park) and Goldendale, with
a total of about 15 thoughtfult@ens participating. Trish Segallso conducted a teen CIM.
Remaining CIMs will be Oct. 18 in Stevensom & evenson and North Bonneville, Oct. 20 in
Ridgefield for North Clark County brancheRidgefield, Battle Gsund, Woodland, La Center
and Yale), Oct. 25 in White Salmon Valley, &ddt. 27 at Three Creeks for Three Creeks and
Vancouver.

Staff meetingsWe're about halfway through a seried@fstaff meetings conducted by Bruce
and attended by Sue. This is an opportunity faif $0 find out what strategic planning is all
about, and to ask questions and make suggsstipproximately 90 eptoyees have attended.
Phone surveyOur district-wide phone survey 400 randomly selected citizens will be
conducted over the next few weeks underdinection of Tom Eiland of Conkling Fiskum
McCormick.

Focus on Teens

Teen Read Week

In recognition of national Teen Read
Week, Oct. 17-23, we'll feature this
ALA promotional banner on our Web
home page. We've also set up the
same graphic as background in the
VA upper lobby display case during
October.

Web site wins kudos

In their October issue, VOYA (Voice of Youth
Advocates) magazine lauded the FVRL teen Web
pages: "Wow! This site hdke visual interest of a

comic book with great contén.Teen participation on

the site is encouraged through book reviews and stories
written by teens." Congrattions to Trish Segal,

Melinda Chesbro and Jeanne Heikkinen for coming up
with a visual concept th&ias attracted national notice
and serves our teens well.




